
Dear Supervisors, 

 

For your consideration— 

 

According to Item 9a) on the Tuesday, February 9, 2021 Agenda, you are  

to evaluate the performance of CEO Carmel Angelo in closed session. 

 

No doubt CEO Angelo will provide you with whatever positives she  

believes deserve recognition. 

 

However, since most of you are relatively new to CEO Angelo’s tenure,  

please allow me to provide some negatives you should also consider. 

 

First, there is too much senior staff turnover under CEO Angelo, the  

departure of several of whom have resulted in costly lawsuits. (Barbara  

Howe, Harinder Grewal, Meribeth Dermond, to name a few.) Other  

departures, while not leading to lawsuits, have deprived the County of  

continuity of senior management and their hard-won accumulated  

experience and expertise. 

 

* * * 

 

A review of the April 2019 Grand Jury report, “Who Runs Mendocino  

County?” which addressed the CEO shows that: 

 

• There is still no “succession plan” in the event of the departure of  

the CEO; 

 

• There are still no “time frames” established for formal board  

directives, much less tracking of progress on those directives; 

 

• Although the CEO claimed that “substantive department updates” are  

provided to the Board, very few such updates have in fact been provided,  

and those few have not been comprehensive. 

 

Although the definition is somewhat loose, the CEO continues to put  

“controversial” items on the consent calendar. 

 

In fact, none of the Grand Jury findings and responses relating to the  

CEO have been addressed or improved upon. 

 

* * * 

 

In addition: 

 

The CEO has wrongly appropriated the agenda setting of the Elected  

Supervisors. Due to the ill-conceived idea that having the CEO also be  

the Clerk of the Board would (allegedly) save a few bucks back in 2010,  

the Board has lost control of its own agenda and must lobby (or more  

accurately beg) its own employee to put important items from ELECTED  

OFFICIALS on the agenda. For example, when was the last time the CEO  

offered viable alternatives to major Agenda Items? Over the last couple  

of years agendas have included numerous major pre-packaged items that  

give the ELECTED OFFICIALS almost no choice but to approve them as  



presented or risk service interruptions. Further, agenda items no longer  

show which budget account will be affected if the item is approved. 

 

• There are still no monthly or bi-monthly budget reports for all  

departments in a manner similar to any properly run organization,  

although the CEO has claimed to be “working on that” in the past. In  

addition, Budget officer Darcie Antle has not provided budget reports  

for months and there has been no follow-up reporting about the  

“sobering” fact (as described by Ms. Antle last July) that a significant  

amount of covid expenses may not be reimburseable under federal  

guidelines. 

 

• Although promised last fall in the CEO report, there is no coordinated  

county-wide vaccination plan, despite the CEO having months of  

foreknowledge that such an important plan would be essential to bringing  

the pandemic under some kind of control in Mendocino County, and despite  

the fact that the County is funding one and a half professional health  

officers. 

 

• There is still no plan on how to spend the $21 million of PG&E  

settlement money. 

 

• Millions of dollars are being wasted on a low-priority Crisis  

Residential Treatment facility on Orchard Avenue, a project which is  

essentially a glorified $1 million four-bedroom house being built for  

over $5 million. (The most expensive four-bedroom house for sale in  

Ukiah is about $1 million; even if you added another $1 million, you’d  

still be well below the wasteful $5 million now being spent, money that  

should go directly to Mental Health facilities and services.) 

 

• The multi-year Exclusive Operating Area (EOA) idea that the CEO said  

would provide sorely needed financial assistance to the County’s  

underfunded inland emergency services ended in a very predictable flop,  

leaving the troubled and ill-coordinated ambulance services basically on  

their own and without additional funding. And the CEO’s promise to  

attempt to explore ways to reduce the cost of the bloated and  

far-removed Coastal Valley EMS services has not been pursued. 

 

I fully expect that the Board will dismiss this as just another  

irrelevant piece of public expression that can be ignored with the  

usual, “Thank you for your input.” However, such a dismissal will only  

demonstrate to the public that our Elected Officials do not have the  

requisite independence to exercise the authority over the County’s  

well-paid CEO and the related County matters that they were elected to  

“supervise.” 

 

Mark Scaramella 

Boonville, Fifth District 

 


